
 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

1

Chairman Timothy Jandebeur called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m.  
 

Roll Call 

Selectman Timothy Jandebeur, Selectman Scott Bryer, Selectman Rick Wolf, and Town 
Administrator Joseph Gunter.   
 

The meeting opened with the pledge of allegiance. 
 

Appointments 

Fred Smith ~ Town Assessor  

Mr. Smith stated that he is present to discuss the town’s assessments and the assessment process. 
He explained that prices are developed based on what property has sold for and looking at what 
it would cost to build a reproduction of what the structure is at the prices for 2015, then 
depreciate it for the age. He explained that new items depreciate quickly and once the property is 
rather old, it will not depreciate much more. During the past five years the biggest change was 
that building prices increased 20% and overall sales prices remained relatively flat. With building 
costs increasing and sales remaining even, the land prices for an average 2 acre lot dropped to 
approximately $69,000, which is down from $93,000.  
 
Selectman Bryer asked if the land prices were adjusted down and building values were increased. 
Mr. Smith replied that prices for building values come from the nationally recognized cost 
manuals and he did check with local builders to make sure the costs were reasonable. He stated 
that there were 138 properties that sold. He stated that when sale prices remain constant there is a 
drop in land values and building costs increase. As building costs increase, the larger houses in 
town that are on smaller lots increases. Vacant land property values also dropped. He stated that 
overall the average of the town dropped about 3%. With the 2010 re-valuation the values 
dropped 23%.  
 
Selectman Bryer asked how the proportion of homes built vs. the number of vacant lots in town 
is affected by the assessment. Mr. Smith replied that waterfront properties saw an increase in 
overall land values. He stated that Northwood Lake had the largest overall increase and he did 
reduce the values for frontage on the lake. He explained that properties that sold in 2015 are 
being assessed at 98% of the sale price. As far as other statistics required by the state, Northwood 
is on track. 
 
Mr. Jandebeur asked about the values of mobile homes as he has received a few calls from 
residents living in mobile homes. Mr. Smith explained that mobile homes depreciate faster; 
however, at some point the depreciation levels off.  Mr. Smith stated that the values may have 
increased due to the increase in construction materials and this increase is an increase to all 
homes.  
 
Further discussion ensued regarding mobile home values and resale values. 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

2

Mr. Smith explained the MS-1 form is an annual report filed every year; it reflects the 
assessments in the format for the state.   
 

Harry McGovern ~ Town of Landaff Fire Chief   

Mr. McGovern requested to meet with the board regarding the negotiations and the purchase of 
the Northwood fire truck. He explained the situation as to how he and the former fire chief began 
the negotiations for the Northwood fire truck. He stated that the former chief had stated that the 
Town of Northwood would be looking for $70,000 to $80,000 for the fire truck so he met with 
the Landaff selectmen who okayed him to pursue the purchase. He noted that there were some 
items on the truck that would not be necessary for Landaff. He stated that the Town of Landaff 
selectmen presented a warrant article to purchase Northwood’s truck for $75,000, which passed. 
He added that the former chief had notified him that Northwood also had passed a warrant article 
for the purchase of new truck. He noted that the way he understood the process would occur was 
that Northwood would be trading the older truck in and the Landaff selectmen would be 
purchasing the truck from a broker.  
 
Selectman Jandebeur stated that there have been discussions relative to the fire truck; however, 
the Northwood selectmen were unaware of the proposed sale. He stated that the Town of 
Northwood did pass a warrant article for a new truck. He explained that a variety of things 
occurred such as the resignation of Fire Chief Lindquist and the appointment of Chief Nikolas 
Bassett. Selectman Jandebeur stated that Chief Bassett has met with the board and indicated that 
the truck, which was approved via the warrant article for $270,000, is not the best truck for 
Northwood. He stated that there is a committee researching what the best truck is for Northwood 
with the approved funds or another warrant article is will be necessary for the difference in 
funds. He apologized for the hardship that the chief and town are going through. He added that 
he believes that Northwood will soon have a truck and will make every effort to see that the 
Town of Landaff receives the current truck.   
 
Selectman Bryer stated that he understands the dilemma that this has caused. He added that the 
selectmen did not feel that it was in the best interest of the town to spend the funds on a truck 
that is not sufficient. He added that he too would support the Town of Landaff purchasing the 
truck.  
 
Mr. Gunter noted that the fire chief has made a decision. There is enough money to cover the 
purchase of the new truck; however, delivery may not be until April 2016.   
 
Selectman Wolf apologized for the hardship that this has caused to the Town of Landaff.  
 
Chief McGovern stated he understands the process and added that it is important for the Town of 
Landaff to purchase this truck.   

 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

3

Selectman Jandebeur stated that an answer will be available to the Town of Landaff by the 
October 13 selectmen’s meeting.   

 

Unfinished Business 

Northwood Lake Boat Launch 

Mr. Gunter stated that this item was continued from the last meeting. He provided minutes from 
1973 when the town requested the boat ramp as well as an explanation from NHDOT regarding 
the process of acquiring a boat ramp. He stated that the information provided is an agreement, 
which confirms that the town is required to maintain the boat ramp and obtain all necessary 
permits to do so.   
 
Selectman Bryer stated that it appears that this is some of the same repairs required for Bow 
Lake, which was on the docket first. He added that if there is going to be a substantial amount of 
money needed then he believes a warrant article should be presented.  
 
Mr. Gunter stated that he did speak with NHDOT and permits may not be required as the area 
where gravel would be added is a road way to the waterway; however, permits may be required 
if there will be impacts to the wetlands.  
 
General consensus of the board is to have the Northwood Lake ramp repaired. The board 
requested that the town administrator look into exactly what will be required for the repairs.  
 

 Mary Waldron Boat Ramp and Beach 

The board discussed the repairs for Mary Waldron Beach, the boat ramp, and repairs necessary 
for Bow Lake Road. Mr. Gunter stated that the town’s engineer has reviewed the information 
and provided an assessment.  
 
The assessment was reviewed and general discussions were held as to the necessary repairs. 
Selectman Bryer asked for a breakdown of the estimate of $74,000. A discussion was held 
regarding putting the project out to bid. Mr. Gunter stated that he will write a bid effective 
through April 1, 2016.  
 

Paving 

Additional discussion was held regarding the paving of Old Mountain Road, Bow Lake Road, 
and Lucas Pond Road. Mr. Gunter stated that the bid process has begun for paving Bow Lake 
Road. He stated that the road will be completed by the end of September. He reviewed the 
specifications in the contract regarding paving time frames and completion. Mr. Wolf expressed 
concern with encroaching onto private property. Mr. Gunter noted that the contract is for paving 
the road and shoulders. He stated that he will contact Linda Smith relative to this matter.    
 
 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

4

Lights at Intersection of Rte. 43 

Mr. Gunter stated that he contacted NHDOT and they are planning to re-time the red lights to 
allow for safe left turning traffic.   

 

Sales of Town Owned Properties 

Mr. Gunter stated that he contacted town counsel relative to the process of selling town owned 
properties. He explained the process and added that it is the town’s right to sell these parcels; 
however, the owner is able to reclaim the property after two years but the town would not be 
involved as it would involve the former owner and new owner. He noted that the town takes the 
property after three years.  
 
Judy Pease, Town Clerk/Tax Collector stated that per recommendation of the Tax Collectors 
Association, the town should not sell deeded properties until three years after the parcel is 
deeded. She explained that the process actually is a seven year process. She stated that there are 
three consecutive years of unpaid taxes then the property is up for deed. There are then three 
more years after that before the property should be sold even though according to the law the 
town could sell the property the day after they take it.   
 
Selectman Jandebeur asked if there is a way to work with the property owners to allow the town 
to sell the property. Ms. Pease replied yes, if every prime interest agrees to the sale. Further 
discussion ensued regarding disbursing the received funds.   
 
Selectman Bryer stated that everything would need to be agreed in writing. He added that the 
town can add any charges incurred on the property as well to secure it, improve for winter, etc. 
He stated that he feels that the town should preserve the asset. Selectman Jandebeur agreed and 
noted that there is one property that should be addressed quickly. Discussion ensues relative to 
the vandalism that is occurring and taking the necessary precautions and posting.  
 

Roadside Mowing 

Mr. Gunter stated that this was continued from a prior meeting. Mr. Gunter stated that an invoice 
was submitted that was more than what was anticipated. He explained that he reviewed the 
minutes to determine what was approved in the contract. He stated that the minutes gave hours 
and a cost for the service; it did not state “not to exceed”. Selectman Jandebeur stated that a 
discussion had been held regarding extra work. Mr. Gunter noted that there was an email, which 
did indicate that additional work would be done. He added that the invoice is included in the 
manifest.  
 

Plowing Contracts  

Mr. Gunter stated that based on the approval from the board at the last meeting he has ordered 
the road salt. He provided the plow contracts and noted that the costs provided are the same as 
last year.  



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

5

Selectman Bryer made a motion to approve the snow removal contract for Robert 

Cafmeyer, in the amount of $95 per hour for a 1-ton dump truck with a plow and sander. 

Seconded by Selectman Wolf. Motion passed; 3/0.  

 

Selectman Bryer made a motion to approve the snow removal contract for D.L. Docko & 

Son, LLC, for various items, as follows: 

• $75 per hour for a 1-ton dump truck with a plow;  

• $100 per hour for a tandem dump truck; 

• $90 per hour for a 6 wheel, single axle dump truck with a plow and spreader; 

• $75 per hour for a WA250 loader with rubber tires    

Seconded by Selectman Jandebeur. Motion passed; 3/0.  

 

Selectman Bryer made a motion to approve the snow removal contract for Weaver 

Trucking and Excavation for a single axle dump truck with a plow and spreader, in the 

amount of $80 per hour. Seconded by Selectman Wolf. Motion passed; 3/0.  

 

New Business 

2016 Budget Review 

The board requested a binder for the budget materials and a blank column for final figures if 
possible.   
 

41301 ~ Selectmen   

Selectman Bryer explained Dues-560. He stated that some selectmen have belonged to the 
assessor’s association and the NH Government Finance Officers Association, NHGFOA. He 
stated that he plans to attend the NHGFOA and has provided the invoice for that for 2016.  
 
Selectman Jandebeur suggested reducing the line by $100. Discussion ensued regarding other 
seminars available.  
 
The department total proposed is $9,735. No changes were made at this time.  
 

41504 ~ Tax Collector/Town Clerk 

Judy Pease, Tax Collector/Town Clerk, was present to present the budget for this department. A 
discussion was held regarding the proposed increase of $1,000. Ms. Pease explained that the 
increase is due to the proposed step increase for the deputy.  
 
Selectman Jandebeur asked about the salaries. Mr. Gunter explained that the salary line includes 
a step and COLA increase. Selectman Jandebeur stated that the finance administrator will be 
presenting updated figures for a few employees regarding their step increases that were not 
received a few years ago. A discussion was held regarding the anniversary dates and it was 
determined that the anniversary date for this employee is December and is not applicable as the 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

6

rate increase is for 2014 and is for employee’s with anniversary dates prior to April 1. Mr. 
Gunter stated that the hourly wage for the deputy will increase from $14.80 Grade 4/Step 11 to 
$15.24 Grade 4/Step 12 and will take effect in December. 
  
Additional discussion was held and Selectman Jandebeur indicated that the salary for the deputy 
does not appear to be correct.  
 
The department total proposed is $108,897, an increase of $1,036.79. No changes were made to 
this budget at this time; however, the salary line will be reviewed.   
 

41402 ~ Restoration of Records  

Judy Pease met with the board to present the budget for this department. She explained that the 
increase of $715 is due to the purchase of another book to be restored. Selectman Bryer asked 
why the information is not being scanned and retained. Ms. Pease explained that the old books 
are bound but are falling apart and these funds include digitizing the information as well. She 
adds that this volume is in very bad condition and will cost more.    
 
The department total proposed is $3,032, an increase of $1,674. No changes were made to this 
budget at this time.  
 

41403 ~ Elections  

Judy Pease met with the board to present the budget for this department. She explained that the 
increase is due to four elections in 2016.  
 
The department total proposed is $9,653, an increase of $6,960. No changes were made to this 
budget at this time.  
 

41303 ~ Moderator   

Judy Pease met with the board to present the budget for this department. She explained that the 
increase is due to four elections in 2016.  
 
Selectman Bryer asked why the salary increased. Ms. Pease replied that the moderator salary is 
paid on an hourly rate and is not just the hours for Election Day. 
  
Ms. Pease noted that the increases to the above department in 2015 were due to the special 
elections that occurred and were not budgeted for. 
 
The department total proposed is $699, an increase of $502. No changes were made to this 
budget at this time 
 
 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

7

41505 ~ Treasurer    

Sandy Priolo met with the board to present the budget for this department. She stated that she has 
presented a level funded budget. She mentioned that she will be ordering ledger books which still 
must be kept for the auditors and the state’s records, per RSA.  
 
The department total proposed is $7,315, a decrease of $38.40, due to social security and 
Medicare. No changes were made to this budget at this time.  
 

47231 ~ Interest on T.A.N.  

Selectman Bryer asked if anything has been added into Interest on T.A.N. Ms. Priolo replied no 
as the board typically does not want to add anything into the T.A.N. She recommended that there 
be $1 to keep the line open.  
 
No changes were made to this budget at this time.  
 

44151 ~ Community Support Agencies 

Mr. Gunter stated that this department has been reduced from $28,945 to $28,761, a decrease of 
$184. He explained that one agency has requested funding for the past three years and has not 
utilized the funds. A new request for 2016 has not been received, to date.  
 
Selectman Jandebeur asked why there is an increase of $1,000 Rockingham County Nutrition. 
Selectman Bryer stated that usually a report is provided from the agencies noting how many 
residents they have supported. Mr. Gunter stated that they explained that there has been an 
increase in the people needing assistance.  
 
The board requested that a report of services provided be obtained.  
 
Selectman Bryer asked what the Child Advocacy Center provides for the town. He noted that this 
agency has been zeroed out as the group has not collected their funds for 2014 or 2015. He added 
that this department is typically addressed by the welfare director.  
 
This department was continued.  
 

44411 ~ Welfare Administration 

David Balian, Welfare Director, met with the board regarding this department. He stated that he 
presented a level funded budget as he felt that there was no need to make any changes at this 
time. He added that this year the information relative to fuel assistance will not be available until 
the middle of December. Discussion ensued. Mr. Balian stated that he has a great list to refer 
people to and he feels that his department is sufficient as presented.   
 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

8

Selectman Jandebeur noted that the salary has increased and he would like to talk to the finance 
administrator to see how the salaries are being figured. Mr. Gunter noted that the numbers may 
be skewed due to the actual anniversary dates of the employees.  
 
Selectman Wolf asked about the potentially new data system that was proposed a few months 
ago. Mr. Balian stated that he has not received any additional information relative to the new 
system and the security. He stated that he has contacted other towns currently utilizing the 
system and they have not had any issues thus far. Selectman Jandebeur requested that Mr. Balian 
try to obtain more information and return to the October 13 meeting.  
 
No changes were made to this budget at this time.  
 

44451 ~ Medical Payments–Welfare  

The department is level funded at $500. 
 
No changes were made to this budget at this time.  
 

41502 ~ Audit Services  

A discussion was held regarding the audit services. Mr. Gunter stated that the budget is level 
funded at $13,400. He added that this is the same company that the town has had for many years. 
Selectman Jandebeur stated that he feels it is good to have different auditors from time to time.    
 
No changes were made to this budget at this time.  
 

41533 ~ Claims Judgements Settlements 

The department is level funded at $1. 
 
No changes were made to this budget at this time.  
 

45201 ~ Recreation Department 

Selectman Bryer referred to a note in the budget to eliminate the beach coordinator position and 
add seven hours to the recreation director. Mr. Gunter described the difficulty working with the 
beach coordinator this year. Selectman Bryer stated that typically the beach coordinator was a 
water safety instructor that could also teach swimming lessons as not every lifeguard can teach 
swim lessons as they must be certified. He stated that he does not mind if everything is included 
in one line. Selectman Wolf noted that there were others teaching the swim lessons.  
 
Selectman Jandebeur asked how many hours was the recreation director position. Mr. Gunter 
replied that it was 22 hours and he is proposing to increase the hours to 29 if the positions are 
combined. He added that he feels this change will be more beneficial to the town.  

 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

9

A discussion was held regarding full time employees. Selectman Bryer asked if the recreation 
director could shift their hours in the peak season and work fewer hours in the off season. 
Selectman Jandebeur suggested 25 hours in the winter and 35 hours in the summer months. He 
explained the full time employees at the school and how the hours are an average. Selectman 
Bryer added that there have been some instances at the state where some employees work part-
time in a few different departments; however, the work is all under the state as the employer and 
these employees were entitled to over time if they exceeded 40 hours within these different 
departments.  
 
Additional discussion was held regarding the overall department budget. Selectman Jandebeur 
asked about the salary for the director as it appears to be $6 less. Mr. Gunter explained that the 
new director will be hired at a rate less than the former director. He added that the budget was 
created without having a director and the salary is an estimate. Selectman Jandebeur added that 
the salary line also includes the proposed seven additional hours from the beach coordinator 
position.  
 
Mr. Gunter noted that this budget includes the rental cost for a portable toilet at the Northwood 
Lake boat launch. He will contact the watershed association and make them aware of this.   
 
Additional discussion was held regarding the placements and responsibilities of the portable 
toilets.  
Mr. Gunter replied that the town is responsible for the porta-potty at Lucas Pond and it will 
remain on site until November. He noted that all other toilets have been removed as they are only 
on site through the summer months. Also discussed was the cleaning time frame.  
 
Mr. Gunter will research the ruling for the combination of hours or the average hours allowed for 
employees to remain at part-time. This budget was continued to the next meeting.   
 

41951 ~ Cemeteries 

Mr. Gunter stated that this budget has been level funded at $3,100. 
 
No changes were made to this budget at this time.  
 

41503 ~ Assessing Administration  

This budget was continued to the next meeting.   
 

Other  

Mr. Gunter noted that 23 of the 51 of the departments, about 45%, proposed a level funded 
budget or it is less. He stated that Ms. Garrett was able to save $3,500 in fuel costs for next year. 
He added that the highway department is the largest increase in the budget, approximately 
$28,000 due to discussions held regarding repairs to the road, ditching, and brush clearing.      



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

10

Selectman Jandebeur stated that he has spoken to Mr. Gunter regarding working with Ms. 
D’Alessandro and the road agent to discuss busing routes. Mr. Gunter stated that he has 
mentioned this to the road agent and has also spoken to Mr. Pease about the bus routes.  
 

Process Assessing Forms and Applications 

ITEM    NAME    MAP/LOT 

  Intent to Cut Wood    Johnson Revocable Family Trust  108/105 
or Timber   Thomas & Brenda Johnson   

     First NH Turnpike 
     Northwood, NH   
 Property taxes have been paid.  

Selectman Bryer made a motion, seconded by Selectman Wolf, to approve the intent to cut 

for Map 108; Lot 105. Motion passed unanimously; 3/0. 

 

Approval Vendor Manifest - #19 

Selectman Bryer motioned to approve manifest V-2015 #19, in the amount of $25,513.68.  

Seconded by Selectman Jandebeur. Motion carried; 3/0. 

 

Selectman Jandebeur asked about the trapping of beavers in town and expressed his feelings 
relative to the town paying too much for this service. Mr. Gunter explained that the property was 
being flooded and areas of the road were beginning to flood. Mr. Pease hired a trapper and the 
beaver dam was destroyed. He noted that the trapper was trapping in town for free; however, 
there is now a licensing process in the state.    

 

Approval of Purchase Orders  

Collins Sport Center ~ Recreation Equipment  

Selectman Bryer motioned to approve the purchase order for Collins Sport Center, in the 

amount of $585, which is the payment for the soccer equipment. Seconded by Selectman 

Wolf. Motion carried; 3/0. 

 

Collins Sport Center ~ Recreation Equipment  

Selectman Bryer motioned to approve the purchase order for Collins Sport Center, in the 

amount of $147.35, which is the payment for various equipment. Seconded by Selectman 

Jandebeur. Motion carried; 3/0. 

 
Mr. Wolf noted the flags on the field and commented that they were very nice. He suggested that 
the town consider taking the flags down at night to prevent theft.  
 

Miscellaneous Signatures/Approvals 

Application to Build on a Class VI Road 

Mr. Gunter presented the board with an application to build on a private road or Class VI road. 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

11

This was reviewed at the last meeting and the form had not been provided. Mr. Gunter provided 
the form for signatures.   

Selectman Bryer motioned to approve the Application to Build on a Class VI Road for 

Wentzell, Map 116; Lot 36; Sublot 56 & 59. Seconded by Selectman Jandebeur. Motion 

carried; 3/0. 

 
Selectman Wolf stated that he will have a hard time signing these agreements in the future and 
noted that this area needs to be looked at by the board. Selectman Jandebeur agreed.  

 

Tree Trimming  

Mr. Gunter stated that the board discussed tree trimming at the last meeting. He reviewed the  
specifications. He stated that there is $15,000 allocated for this project. Quotes received are as 
follows: 

• Aborcare ~ $10,150 

• Barry Lavalley ~ $ 19,500 
The roads that will be addressed are Bow Lake Road, Harmony Road, and Harvey Lake Road. 
Additional discussion was held regarding what the road work includes; trimming 17’ up. 
Selectman Jandebeur stated that he would like to get input from Bruce Hodgdon as to any 
additional roads that may need some trimming done. Selectman Bryer added that Ms. 
D’Alessandro, owner of Northwood Transportation, should also be contacted for comments and 
suggestions regarding what roads may need trimming. Selectman Jandebeur added that Deerfield 
Road should be looked at. 

 

Selectman Bryer motioned to approve Aborcare to do tree trimming on Bow Lake Road, 

Harmony Road, and Harvey Lake Road, in the amount of $10,150. Seconded by Selectman 

Wolf. Motion carried; 3/0. 

 

Reports 

Town Administrator’s Report  

Crack Sealing   

Mr. Gunter stated that he has had some difficulty obtaining quotes for crack sealing. Selectman 
Jandebeur commented on how well the road construction projects have been done in Dover.  
 
Selectman Bryer asked about the town road repair schedule done by the highway advisory 
committee. He explained that many side streets are in need of repair. He suggested a plan be 
created to address these side streets. Discussion continued regarding patching these side roads.  
 

Ball Fields 

Mr. Gunter discussed the construction of the ball fields. He suggested that the board consider 
turning the field as a way to save money and it would speed up the process.  
 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

12

A discussion was held regarding the course of action for the fields. Selectman Jandebeur stated 
that $35,000 was spent on a set of plans for the field and the process has not been followed. He 
stated that two soccer fields are completed. He explained that the back portion area was to be a 
full size baseball and a soccer field. The decision was made to place one filed on top of the other 
until the area can be addressed to create the two fields. Further discussion was held regarding 
this option. Selectman Jandebeur stated that he would really like to see a plan and he added that 
$400,000 has already been spent on these fields. He added that the process needs to be followed 
and continued to explain the work that should be done, specifically noting the areas that need to 
be filled in to allow for proper water runoff. He added that there is no reason why the fields 
cannot be covered with seed now as there are funds available for this then next spring address the 
baseball location. He stated that seeding should be completed now as it does take one year for 
that process.  
 
Selectman Wolf stated that when projects are funded through warrant articles a better job needs 
to be done for follow up. Selectman Jandebeur agreed and noted that there were numerous 
articles that could have been handled better. He stated that it will be better this year.  
 

Citizen’s Forum 

Betty Smith ~ Ready Rides Program  

Betty Smith referred to the budget section specific to Community Support Agencies. She stated 
that the board agreed to table this section at this time. Selectman Jandebeur stated that the board 
tabled the discussion for additional information. Ms. Smith stated that she is a member of the 
committee for the Ready Rides program and asked if the donation for this program would be 
approved. Selectman Jandebeur stated that the board did not have any specific questions 
regarding that program.  

 

Mike Smith ~ Road Work  

Mr. Smith asked about the brush cutting and ditch work that was done on Harvey Lake. He 
stated that he is disappointed in the quality of the work done. He stated that he has moved some 
of the branches as they are hazardous to vehicles. He noted that there is a lot of dirt and wood 
chips along the road that needs to be cleaned up. In addition, he added that the culvert should be 
addressed. Further discussion continued regarding the quality of the road as well as the existing 
culverts.  
 
Selectman Jandebeur stated that culvert installations are something that the town is looking into. 
He added that the road agent will be contacted to look into this.   

 

Non-Public Session 

8:30 p.m. Selectman Bryer made a motion, seconded by Selectman Wolf, to go into non-

public session under RSA 91-A:3,ll A&C.   

 



 
 

Northwood Board of Selectmen 
 Minutes of September 8, 2015 

 

Official as of October 6, 2015 
 

13

Roll Call Vote: 

Selectman Wolf – yes  

Selectman Jandebeur – yes 

Selectman Bryer – yes 

Motion carried; 3/0. 

 

9:00 p.m. Selectman Jandebeur made a motion, seconded by Selectman Wolf, to come out 

of non-public session.   

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Selectman Wolf – yes  

Selectman Bryer – yes  

Selectman Jandebeur – yes 

Motion carried, 3/0. 

 

Selectman Jandebeur stated that no decisions were made in non-public.  

 

Adjournment 

Selectman Bryer motioned to adjourn at 9:02 p.m. Selectman Wolf seconded. Motion 

carried; 3/0. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Lisa Fellows-Weaver 
Board Secretary  


